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Present Clubhouse Opened in July 1969

Present Clubhouse as it looked in 2007.

TOURNAMENTS AND COMPETITIONS

From its first year of operation, the club has had a keen interest in
competitions, not only within the club, but also with other golf clubs and
the South Canterbury Association fixtures. Being members of the New
Zealand Golf Association gives members the chance to enter most
tournaments throughout the country.

In 1907 games were held with Timaru, Geraldine and Ashburton, at that
time players had had little experience and losses occurred, but at the
same time the will to win was there, coming to fruition on many occasions
over later years. These interclub games were extended to included most
clubs within the South Canterbury area as the years went by, up until
about 1956 when the Association brought in the pennant matches that
now take place.

The club has had considerable success in many grades of these events,
Notable by the banners in the club house, having won the finals on many
occasions. The interclub prestigious “Bristol Cup” been won at least six
times through the years. The “Francis Norman” cup, competed for by
elected members of each clubs executive throughout Canterbury each
year, has been secured twice by Temuka, no mean achievement.

The ladies too have had their successes, winning the New Zealand
Womans Veteran Foursomes on their own course in 2006 and gaining
places in this event in earlier years. The ladies initiative in seeking this
event for Temuka and gaining this national tournament must be
acknowledged, this was conducted most successfully and | am sure all
participants would welcome this being held in Temuka in future years.

They have also competed with distinction in the local Stylemaster
tournament bringing home the silverware for display in the club rooms.

Temuka has had many players of natural ability who have made selection
in South Canterbury Freyberg and Masters teams, playing in many
venues in New Zealand, the ladies also gaining selection in their
Association teams, these people have always acquitted themselves well
in this highly competitive arena of the sport. Miss J Ashwell (later Mrs L J
Grant) playing in the ladies New Zealand Championships took out the
longest drive trophy with borrowed clubs, this must have occurred in the
earlier years of the club as she was a foundation member, but it appears
the lady had tremendous talent for the game, in Timaru she was made to
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play off the men’s tees during tournaments. Another notable for Temuka
was the selection of David O’'Keefe in the New Zealand Schoolboys Golf
Team in 1982. Temuka has been in the forefront in running tournaments
and has a high reputation in this field, players have come from many
parts of the South Island to compete in events, the DB Cup, South
Canterbury Foursomes, Temuka 2000 and Easter Classic to name a few.
Good prizes, quality catering and tournament preplanning have enticed
many first class golfers into these fields over the years. But alas, an
abundant of tournaments today, together with strict drink driving laws
have contributed to a downturn in entries, some events folding
completely.

As already stated competitions within the club go back to its origins and
have always created a competitive rivalry. Many trophies are competed
for annually, both in mens and ladies sections. As you look up at the
championship boards, or study the many engraved cups and trophies,
the caliber of some past and present players within the club show,
outstanding talent, the same names shine forth time after time. The club
has been fortunate in having had a number of philanthropists involved
with the club, who throughout the years have donated many trophies for
competition.

Club Members at Closing Day 1950

Within the tournament structure mention must be made of the many
outside organisations who have leased the clubs course and facilities,
Altrusa Club, Cricket Club, Rugby Club, Police Club, South Island Maori,
School Teachers, Licenced Victuallers, Timaru firms and even
Christchurch Firms, to name a few. These have all added to the clubs
finances, but you begin to wonder as you scribe through the minutes,
when did the club members get a chance to play the course. Before
leaving the tournament area, recognition must be given to the South
Canterbury Veterans Club, they cater for their members with a monthly
tournament on various courses around the district. | believe Temuka had
a strong hand in its origin some years ago.

MAJOR SETBACKS

A big handicap from the late thirties until the late forties was the inability
to purchase golf balls, as all rubber was commandeered for the war
effort, plus most rubber producing countries were in the conflict zones.
The club decided to start a golf ball pool from older member, thus
allowing newer members to draw upon this to play the game.

The players must have been very canny in those years, for not many
balls were lost, but as is still the case today, Avenue and Creekside were
the most profitable areas to seek them out and sell them to members for
sixpence. The creek in front of Bridge tee was a prime spot, more water
flowed then due to the storm water from King Street being directed into
the stream, this now flows further south away from the domain, the only
way to retrieve a wayward shot from the tee was to get in bare footed to
find the ball amidst the silted bottom. The minutes state that the club at
one stage ruled that members were not to purchase balls found on the
course, it is wondered how effective such a directive would be when balls
were so scarce.

Floods, snow and storms have played their part in causing havoc to play,
firstly the major flood in March 1945, another in 1951 and again in 1986
with minor ones at other times. After the 1986 the club had had enough
of the course being inundated and made the decision to raise a stop bank
along the weak area, this at considerable expense. Snow too has
caused great damage to the aesthetic appearance of the property, with
the trees and shrubs having limbs broken and in some cases so badly
affected they had to be completely removed and replaced. Thirty
centimeters fell in 1945 and the same amount arrived 2006. August the




image9.jpg
first 1975 brought a rampaging northwest tornado to the district, again
serious damage occurred, a stand of pine trees to the left of number ten
fairway as well as along the bank above, were completely demolished,
together with other trees around the course, this was something South
Canterbury had not experienced in the past, a wind of that velocity was
most frightening, it was almost impossible to keep on ones feet.
Fortunately it came during the night, for the danger in the open from flying
roof and fencing iron and other debris was very high and deaths could
have occurred.  But unfortunately this is nature at its worst and there is
no remedies readily available to counter such forces, just clean up the
mess and wait until the course is once again ready to be played on.

Other less daunting disasters that have taken place a number of times
have been burglaries, it is not only the loss of stock and cash, but also
the damage caused in breaking into the building.  Being somewhat
isolated to a degree and peoples reluctance to become involved, the
alarm system is not always a deterrent to thieves. This brings us to the
police raid in 1961. The story as | have heard it told, was that the club
held a tournament, a golfer from another club took part and won a prize,
he celebrated his win over zealously and was a little worse for wear. He
left the club house, drove through the domain and hit the kerbing on the
north side of Domain Avenue, he then zigzagged his way to King Street
where he was nabbed by the police. The next Saturday a stranger had a
game of golf and stayed for a drink. The following week the police arrived
in force and confiscated all the alcohol in the club house, for at that time
the club never held a licence to sell liquor. The stranger that played had
quite obviously been an undercover policeman from out of town. The
club was fined a token amount for its misdemeanor. From then on booth
licences were the order of the day, up until the club was able to obtain a
full licence.

CATERING

Up until three years ago the ladies have always carried out the task of
catering for club days, tournaments and other functions, they performed
these duties on a roster bases. As stated earlier the club had a high
reputation for its quality catering.

From 1907 up until the 1940’s the charge for tea and biscuits after golf
was threepence, this was then changed to sixpence, it must be
remembered this was during the war years, and tea and sugar were
rationed. In 1945 the club decided to purchase afternoon tea items
alternately from Reids Tearooms one month and Stokes’s Home Bakery

the next, it is not mentioned if sandwiches and cakes were now on the
menu, presumably this would be the case. During major tournament
meals were included in the entry fee, but over later years this has been
dropped, as it is not normal practice at most golf course, thus entry fees
have been lowered as a result. For the past three years catering has
been let out to professional caterers who are providing very good service
and first class fare.

One strange matter found in the minutes that was most intriguing, was
that in 1950, when playing another club in Temuka, members were
requested to take their opponents to the Quicklunch Restaurant for a
meal, possibly because the club house was too small to cater.

MISCELLANY

Because the tennis/croquet pavilion was very small and probably
extremely cold during the winter months, the monthly golf committee
meetings were held in committee members private homes, or in the case
of business people in their offices. Annual meetings were conducted in
Reids Tearooms.

The matter of children playing on the greens, or wandering around the
course has been a problem over the years, not so much today, but
occasionally a bit of vandalism takes place. On a number of occasions
officers of the club have had to contact the local headmasters seeking
their assistance in an endeavour to keep the course free of children, it is
a dangerous place with golf balls flying around.

In the 1930's/1940's the club had a weekly draw published in the Timaru
Herald on a Thursday, this allowed members to note their starting times
and who they were against, as noted by the late Bruce Edwards at the
clubs 80" Birthday celebrations, the club did not welcome younger
players and if ‘nobs’ were drawn against able juniors, they did not turn up.
It was very elitist in those days, you virtually almost had to have a blood
test to become a member. Today fortunately people from all walks of life
enjoy the game and the sociability.

Professional coaching from Timaru professional golfers has played its
part in the clubs history, G. B Forrest, Tim White, Mark Sandri and Eric
McGuigan have all given their time to teach the games basics. It must
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also be mentioned the club has put a good deal of effort and time into
junior coaching in a endeavor to encourage the youth of the town to take
up the game, members must be thanked for this.

In the past few years the club has instituted nine holes golf for those
members who enjoy the game, but feel eighteen holes would be too
much for them to handle, age being a factor in some cases and minor
disabilities in others. | understand there are about thirty players taking
part on a regular basis, interclub games take place from time to time.
Mrs E Bisdee has been a prime innovator in instigating this little club
within a club. Speaking of Mrs Bisdee, it is interesting to note this lady
was elected as the first president of the South Canterbury LGU.

Twilight nine hole golf has had a rejuvenation in the last two years,
having fallen by the wayside for a while, but has comeback with a
vengeance, up to seventy players participating on Tuesday evening
during daylight saving. For a small fee with a hot dog included, it makes
for a pleasant evening, it also encourages non golfers to take part,
perhaps enticing them in to membership.

The club has also in latter years declared Tuesday and Thursdays as
official club days in conjunction with Saturdays and the ladies
Wednesdays. Both these extra days draw members to the course, with
an average of up to twenty on Tuesdays and sometimes over forty on
Thursdays. These players are comprised of retirees, farmers, shift and
seasonal workers.

| 'am sure the club would wish to pass a vote of thanks also, to those
members who have given their time and traveled to Timaru to represent
the club on the South Canterbury Association, thus keeping the club up to
date on current matters in the district.

NAMING THE HOLES

Many of the named holes are self explanatory, such as Avenue Dip,
Creekside, Bridge, Eastwardho, Shorty and Exodus, but others have
been derived from various means, Cottage towards the domain curators
cottage, Pathway originally started where number three tee now is close
to the path through the avenue trees, Grange from the original course,
Gum from the large gum that used to be beside the Creekside green,
Bobby Walker from past president Bob Walker, Grand National this was
supposed to be the final hole, Tims named after Tim White golfing coach,
Dynamite unknown but still a difficult hole, Matai from flora in that area
and green Hayes from the Hayhurst property.

The 1920 course had many different names, number one was Alpha, two
- Gap, Three - Creekside, four - Sol, Five - Willows, six - Avenue, seven -
Pathway, eight - Cottage, nine - Omega. Note the strong emphasis on
the Greek and Latin classical languages, apparently Mr Basil Smith was a
scholar as well as a professional golfer.

The club is strong both membership wise and financially, members can
look forward to the future with confidence as further improvements are
made to the club house, more up to date irrigation system is installed on
the course and other improvements are carried out.
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PAST PRESIDENTS LIFE MEMBERSHIP

DIES

1940 A.S. Mclnnes 1974175 D.G. Walker LA MEN

1941 R.E. McGregor 1976/77 K. Martin Miss M Faraiissn MR E Tavi

1942/3 J.T. Smart 1978/79 AR.McLean Mo DM Liooson MRS E Mostin

1944/45 A.S. Mcinnes 1980/82 L.P. Brosnahan i Miss E A Thompson Mr R J Crisp

1946/48 L.F. Robins 1983/84 P.J. Histen Mrs A Martin Mr J Prattley

1949/53 R.D. Walker 1985/87 G.E. Double Mrs S Foxcroft Mr L P Brosnahan

1954/55 S.R. Nicholas 1988/89 A.K. Davenport Mrs D Crisp Mr A R McLean

1956/59 S.F. Martin 1990/92 R.L. Marryatt Mr G E Double

1960/61 R.E. Taylor 1993/94 B.J. Blackmore

1962/63 A.D. Cameron 1995/96 B. Thompson All these people have performed meritorious service to the club, they
1964/67 D.G. Walker 1997 K. Foxcroft have undertaken various multi roles within the clubs structure for the
1968 S.F. Martin 1998/99 D.C. Hall benefit of the membership and the clubs continued existence.

1969 R.E. Tayler 2000/02 P.A. Maslin

1970 D. G. Walker 2003/04 P.A. Donehue Not for honour or glory, simply because the tasks were there and needed
1971/73 A.R. McLean 2005/06 D.R. Will to be undertaken.g v P

LIFE M

3 Back Row;  Graeme Double, Leo Brosnahan, Stuart Martin, Alistair McLean
PAST PRESIDENTS Front Row;  Anne Martin, Shona Foxcroft, Doreen Crisp.
Back Row;  Peter Maslin, Dave Will, Dick Marryatt, Graeme Broker, Tony Davenport,
Phil Donehue

Front Row; Graeme Double, Leo Brosnahan, Stuart Martin, Alistair McLean.
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CLUB CAPTAINS

CLUB CAPTAINS
Back Row; Peter Maslin, Hans Winkelman, Tony Davenport, Hans Remmerswaal, Ray
Teahen, Les McGillen, Max Crisp.
Middle Row; Stuart Martin, Dick Marryatt, Duncan Hall, Marj Holt, Glenis Priddle, Graeme
Double, Norm Barnett.
Front Row;  Faye Mulvey, Kathy Manson, Winnie McCully, Shona Foxcroft, Anne Martin,
Betty Bisdee, Jan Davenport, Doreen Crisp

HOLES IN ONE

WOMEN

W.T. Taipana, B Porter, M. Bray, M Franklin, A. Jones, M. Hastie,
L. Attridge (2), B. Bisdee, N. Prattley, M. Bolton, A. Thompson (2),
E. Marryatt, M. McStay, J. Davenport, R. Hix.

MEN

B, Ferguson, J.A. Bates, R. McCully, J.Prattley, B Archibald, R. Voice,

A. Woodley, K. Topham, A. Davis, E. Bell, R.D. Teahen, M. Dickson (2),
C.F. Walker, N.F. Barnett, J. Johnathon, D. Garden, D. McStay (2),

G. Kearns, J. Kirkcaldie (2), R. Heke (2), T. Holt, A. McLean, G. Jones,
G. Double, I. Cleveland, R. Cross, R. McMillan, J. Hastie, D. Phillips,

T. Kannar, R. Hill (2), L. Birosnahan, S. Keen, C. Henderson, M. Quinn,
R. Harmon, F. Turner (4), C. Allfrey, B. Green, R. Stewart, R. Burgess,

C. Fitzgerald, M. Gillard, R. Cook, R. Sinton, R. Long (2), P. Stewart,

C. Attridge, W. Hobbs, R. Holt, I. Holt, D. McLachlan, W. Anglem, (2),

V. Brodrick, B. Thompson, A. Palmer, J. Cornelius, N. Whitman, D.
Hollamby, P. Donehue, A. Davenport, F. Jones, G. Harris (2), K. Tarrant,
M. Kerse, |. Cornelius, W. Bell, J. Manson, C.E. Cribb, B. Mulvey,

L. McGellen, P. Stringer, D. Came, I. Thompson, R. Manson, A. Brooks,
W. Norton, P. Davidson, L. Brosnahan, L McGillen.
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From left;  Dick Marryatt, Winnie McCully, Graeme Broker, Frances Mulvey, Graeme
Double, Glenis Priddle, Les McGillen

g2y

4" DECADE 1937 - 1946
Stuart Martin and Maurice Coughlan share memories at the ‘Mix and Mingle’ on Friday
Evening

5 DECADE
1947-1957

5" DECADE 1947 - 1956
Back Row;  Bruce McCully, Joe Waaka.
Front Row, Graeme Double, Joyce Martin, Frances Gaffaney, Max Crisp.

6 DECADE
1957-1966

= =

6™ DECADE 1957 - 1966

Back Row; Snow Manson, Warren Jackson, Tony Davenport, Harvey Fitt, Graeme
Donaldson, Murray Walker.

Front Row; June Donaldson, Anne Martin, Doreen Crisp, Heather Hazlett.
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Back Row; Ned Phiskie, Malcolm Bisdee, Ted Cribb, Peter McCully, Ray Teahen, Albert Peattie, Alistair McLean, Graham Jones.
Middle row; Phil Donehue, Paul Mawhinney, Duncan Hall, Joe Faulkner, Hans Winkelman, Barbara Phiskie, Beverly Green,
Rae Winkelman, Pauleen Hall, Leo Brosnahan, Graeme Broker, Gavin Cain, Les McGillen, Kevin Histen.

,

,

7™ DECADE 1967 - 1976

,

!

, Front Row; Winnie McCully, Phylis Peattie, Betty Bisdee, Renne Jones, Shona Foxcroft, Jenny Goodman, Ann McLean, Kathy Manson.
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9" DECADE 1987 - 1996
Back Row: David Will, Brian Wallis, Murray Kearse, Jim Sinclair, Jim Olsen.
Middle Row: Brian Mulvey, Jan Sinclair, Dianne Taylor, Diane Moloney, Frances Mulvey, Lynn Stratford, Jenny Bolitho, Ben Glass.
Front Row: Robyn Will, Margaret Jackson, Yshbel Glass, Pam McCelland, Glenis Priddle, Angela O’Reilly, Faye Mulvey, Shirley Wallis.
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Patron Alistair McLean drives the first ball of the clubs
second century.

President Graeme Broker unveils the
Centennial Plaque prior to golf on Easter
Saturday.

Max Crisp and Joyce Martin cutting the
Centennial Cake at the ‘Dine & Dance’
on Saturday evening

Centennial Celebrations

The Temuka Golf Club celebrated its Centennial at Easter 2007. The
weekend began with a ‘Mix and Mingle’ on Friday night, at which past
and present members were able to look at photos and reminisce. A
patchwork banner of the Club Emblem, sewn by club member Janis
Kearns was presented to the club by Women's Club Captain Faye
Mulvey.

Prior to the Saturday Stableford competition, Club President Graeme
Broker unveiled the Centennial Plaque mounted on a rock adjacent to the
clubhouse and Patron Alistair McLean, drove the first golf ball into the
new century. Although raining at tee off time, it was pleasing to see all
the golfers turn up to play especially the older members. Two 82 year
olds, Life member and Ex President Leo Brosnahan and Maurice
Coughlan a club champion in 1948-49 didn’t let the weather stop them.
Even though the course was in great condition most of the players found
the wet conditions difficult, the two who didn’t were Dick Marryatt with a
good score of 40 and Pam McClelland with 36 won with ease.

The ‘Dine and Dance’ on Saturday evening was attended by all seven
surviving Life Members, Alistair McLean, Leo Brosnahan, Stuart and
Anne Martin, Graeme Double, Shona Foxcroft and Doreen Crisp it was
appreciated that they made the effort to attend. The Centennial Cake
was cut by Max Crisp and Joyce Martin, who are two of the longest
serving members, both are still playing golf after over 50 years with the
club. Those attending enjoyed an evening of fine food and wine topped
off by good music and dancing.

Weather on Sunday was a stark contrast to the previous day with warm
sunny conditions prevailing for the Ambrose competition, the winning
team was Hans Winkelman, Lloyd Cunningham, Robbie Armstrong,
Margaret Jackson and Graeme Bolitho. After the prize giving, 2 number
of members paraded. ‘Golf Fashions Through The Ages’. A number of
light-hearted stories also told about the history of golf, and the women
gofers also entertained by singing a centennial song.

It was good to see past members and present members all joining to
celebrate this milestone for the club and hope we all may have many
more games of golf at the Temuka Golf Club.
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TEMUKA GOLF CLUB
CENTENNIAL

1907 - 2007

EASTER APRIL 6™ to 8™
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PREFACE

Temuka is a township of just over 4,000 people situated 18.5km north of
Timaru and 59km south of Ashburton. The name Temuka is a derivative
of Te umu kaha, in reference to the large hangi ovens of the Maori, a
common feature of the area in the early days of European settlement.

The Temuka domain was gazetted as a reserve, circa the 1860’s and has
gradually been developed over the years to cater for all citizens, passive
recreation, many sporting organizations, a stadium for indoor sports and
the communities social requirements, a swimming pool and a popular
motor camp with all facilities.

The early settlers and many people since have added features to the
domain, one man to stand out was Tom Gunnion, a former mayor. He
spent much time and energy driving his horse and dray back into the hill
country, to bring native shrubs and plants. He constructed a fernery just
south of the rugby rooms on the bank of the creek that once ran through
there, but this was washed away in the 1945 flood. We now look at the
many varieties of flora and the mighty trees towering along the avenue
and thank these people for their labour and forethought, in leaving this
egacy. As you walk the domain you will find a number of monuments
acknowledging these people, that honour is richly deserved.

n the same vein we must pay tribute to the golf club personnel who also
have given their time and energy to the club, regardless of whether it was
serving on committees, beautifying the surrounds, doing manual work on
he course, running the competitions or manning the nineteeth, all these
asks require manpower. We must thank and compliment these people,
who over the many years have voluntarily stepped forward for the
betterment of the club.

In penning this history | acknowledge the material supplied by Joyce and
he late Keith Martin, Doreen and Max Crisp, files from the original
Temuka Leader collated by the late Bruce Edwards, cuttings from the
Timaru Herald. Rae Winkelman began collecting this data, thus assisting
greatly in enabling this booklet to begin. Also, thank you to Geof Harris
for rounding up the early minute books and Pat Mulvey for this
outstanding work in the collation of the photography. The only regret is
the earliest minute book available begins in 1939.

Les McGillen, Editor
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HISTORY OF THE TEMUKA GOLF CLUB

1907 - 2007

THE BEGINNING

The initial commencement of golf in Temuka began in 1907, when a local
bank manager, Mr H Bradmore, convened a meeting seeking people
interested in forming a club in the town. These founding members were
Messers Bradmore, W {Pearse, J Ashwell, G Fielding, Mesdames, F E
Smith, J Ashwell, A Gill, L J Grant, Misses Aspinall and McLeod.

These people must have canvassed the area well, for that year a club
had been formed, with Dr Hayes becoming the first president, A nine
hole course had been constructed at Grange Settlement on the
properties of Messrs Prattley, Knight, and Pearse. The course was
opened on the second of May and competitions were commenced,
trophies being donated by Mr and Mrs Johnston, Dr Hayes, Mesdames
Ashwell and Bradmore, Messrs G Galt, W Evans, W Pearse, M McLeod,
H Bradmore and a Mr Rogers.

The officers elected at the annual meeting in 1908 were, President, E
James, Vice Presidents, Dr Hayes and W Johnston, Captain, H
Bradmore, Lady Captain, Mrs Johnston, Secretary/Treasurer, H
Paulleine, Committee, Mrs Bradmore, Miss Guild, Miss Grant, Messrs M
McLeod, W Evans, and Rev Adcock, Handicapper/Selector, H Bradmore.

By 1911 the Grange course was no longer available, so a new site
required to be found. A Links committee was appointed to choose a
suitable area where a course could be established. The committee
studied several potentials, at Epworth, Willowbank at the north end of
town, the rear of Ashfield in Cass Street, the saleyards and the domain.
All these had some drawbacks, the domain because of its reserve
designation, there would be no way to keep children off the course. The
links committee recommended a site near the flour mill at Milford close to
Prattley’s corner. There the club could obtain a five year lease, the turf
was good, it was very private, had plenty of room and could be developed
at little expense. The club approved the decision. The first World War
brought a drain on membership as many joined the armed services.
Because of this downturn, the club was invited by Colonel Hayhurst to

use his private course at Green Hayes, now known as the Salvation Army
Bramwell Booth Home.

After the war the membership began to grow once more and moves were
begun to establish a permanent course in the domain.  The children
problem must have been forgotten or overlooked, but would trouble the
club over later years.

A Delegation consisting of Dr Curtis, J T Smart and W Pearse were
appointed in 1919 to meet with the Temuka Domain Board to obtain a
lease. The delegation was obviously successful in their quest, for at the
annual meeting in 1920, the course in the domain was spoken of. An
Oamaru professional, Mr Basil Smith, was retained to design a course
within the area of land encompassing the present first nine holes of
todays course. He competently carried out his assignment with an
interesting layout starting and finishing in the vicinity of the tennis/netball
courts. This satisfied the club up until 1931, when the layout was
revamped. Although some holes have been retained, the configuration
then was completely dissimilar to todays first nine.  During the thirties
and late forties, with membership increasing, the club had difficulties with
holdups at certain points, to overcome this the tees and playing order
were changed on a regular basis.

In 1951 the land below the present clubhouse was leased and twelve
holes were brought into play. In 1967 the final land to the east was
brought into the lease and thus the present eighteen holes were
established.

Photograph circa 1920’s
Club Members Outside First Clubrooms in the Domain
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COURSE MAINTENANCE

Nugget the Golf Club Horse

There are no records of how the earlier courses were maintained,
presumably horse drawn grain mowers would have been utilised to cut
the fairways and push mowers used on the greens. It is recorded that
sheep grazing was undertaken on the present course during the summer
months, as golf was only played from April to October each year. The
grazing was leased to local farmers from November to March and
brought in needed revenue, at the same time keeping the grass growth in
order. The president from 1946 to 1948, Len Robins, also ran sheep for
a while, but Bob Walker, president from 1949 to 1953, convinced the club
to purchase 157 sheep at £432 and graze the course themselves. This
was undertaken in 1950 and returned a considerable profit of £240 from
the sale of the wool and £380 from the resale of the sheep. This profit
enabled a triplex gang mower and a second hand Dodge truck to pull it to
be bought. These items replaced the faithful old horse “Nugget” who had
given yeoman service pulling three bolted together lawnmowers around
the fairways. Kiwi ingenuity was still alive then. During the period the
course was grazed, the greens and bunkers had to be fenced off from the
stock, this entailed certain expenditure and much manual labour, but the
effort must have been worth it. One strange practice that was undertaken
in those early years, the greens were cut twice a month and on alternate
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weeks rolled with a heavy water filled roller during the summer, the
fairways also received this treatment. ~ And we complain about the
greens today!!

In 1945 a subscription list was started to purchase a motor mower for the
greens, men were levied five shillings and the ladies two and sixpence,
the mower was bought that year. 1949 saw reticulated water brought to
the greens, six being completed initially the rest at a later date, there
must have been some type of water cart prior to that. 1958 must have
been a red letter year, as the club bought their first tractor, an Allis
Chalmers, purchased from Hector Palmer for a hundred and seventy five
pounds. From then on the club gradually built up the necessary
equipment to maintain the course to a high standard and continue today
to upgrade or replace machinery as required when it reaches its natural
life span. The main committee of the club must make regular payments
into a plant replacement fund on a yearly basis to ensure there is funding
available at short notice to replace a machine that has reached the stage
it is no longer viable to be repaired. There is no doubt that with
machinery there is always going to be breakdowns due to normal wear
and tear, with modern gear this can be expensive to fix, as in many cases
expert assistance is required to remedy the matter, not as in early times
when a broken shovel handle could be fixed on the job.

A major undertaking by the club occurred in 1986 when fairway watering
was installed by Baxter Irrigation at a cost of $36,960.00. This
improvement has brought great benefit to the playing of the course and
also added to its appearance during the summer months. No longer do
players or spectators have to shield their eyes from sunburnt dry brown
grass.

The Temuka domain has a picturesque appearance due to the early
settlers labours, the club has added to this scene over the years by
having an ongoing tree and shrub replacement plan. The domain once
had a curator and staff with propagation houses, a Mr Alf Watson was the
curator at one period and his wife and he were both members of the club.
He assisted greatly with the supply of plants and also had his staff assist
on the course during the golf off season.

There have been many greenkeepers since the move to the domain, all

have contributed to the betterment of the course, some of their proposals
have not always met with everyones approval, but that is “par” for the
course, one man cannot satisfy a hundred or more critics, they only
endeavour to work to the best of their ability. The club has been most
ortunate being in a rural area, over the many years local farming
members have played a role around the course with their heavy
machinery, especially after a natural disaster, ably assisted by townie
members during the cleanup of debris lying around the devastated area.
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THE CLUB HOUSES

It is interesting to note the various ‘club houses’ that have been utilised
over the past one hundred years, an old hut at The Grange, a galley at
Milford, the lease of an old tennis/croquet pavilion in the domain, a new
club house by the tennis pavilion and finally the present facility.

When the club moved to the domain, they leased the tennis/croquet
pavilion up until 1950, when the croquet folded through lack of
membership and sold their share in the pavilion to the golf club for six
pounds. There was no problem with sharing the pavilion, for as
previously stated, golf was only played in the winter months at that time.
This arrangement worked satisfactorily until the late fifties, but by then
membership had increased and the pavilion had become too small, so
the club decided to build their own property in the vicinity of the tennis
pavilion, selling their share in that building to the basketball (now netball)
club.

The committee allowed the sum of one thousand three hundred pounds
to erect the new building after viewing plans produced by a
subcommittee. The club house was built for one thousand one hundred
and forty pounds, an outstanding achievement by the members led by the
late Jack Prattiey, Alan Cameron, Eddy Clinch, Frank Wynn, and John
Wilson, all of whom were tradesmen and gave their time free. Mr Wynn
was not even a member of the club, but was community minded.

It is recorded that the club sold their share in the tennis/golf pavilion
chattels to the basketball club for sixty pounds, but there is no mention of
the sale price the club sold present tennis/netball pavilion for to the
basketball club, | believe it was around sixteen hundred pounds.

The present club house was erected in 1969 at a cost of approximately
fourteen thousand dollars. Both buildings erected by the club were made
possible by members taking our interest free debentures. There have
been a number of alterations made to the present club house since 1969,
the downstairs addition, new kitchen, new office and starters area and an
exterior toilet for when the club house is closed.

First Clubhouse in the Domain

Second Clubhouse in the Temuka Domain





